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I. INTRODUCTION 

This Administrative Order on Consent (Consent Order) is entered into voluntarily by the United 

States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and Respondent BIP 40, LLC. The Consent Order 

concerns the implementation and completion of actions required to restore the environmental damage 

caused by allegedly illegal discharges of dredged and/or fill material into wetlands adjacent to Camp 

Creek at the Williston RV Village Resort (the Site) in Williston, Williams County, North Dakota. 

II. STATUTORY AUTHORITY 

This Consent Order is issued pursuant to the authority vested in the Administrator of the EPA by 

sections 308 and 309 ofthe Clean Water Act (CWA), 33 U.S.C. §§ 1318 and 1319, and by the 

Administrator delegated to the Regional Administrator of the EPA Region 8 and redelegated by the 

Regional Administrator of the EPA Region 8 to the Assistant Regional Administrator, Office of 

Enforcement, Compliance and Environmental Justice. The Consent Order is based on the findings of 

violation of section 301(a) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1311(a) which, among other things, prohibits the 

discharge of pollutants into waters of the United States except as in compliance with section 404 of the 

CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1344. 



III. PARTIES BOUND 

This Consent Order shall apply to and be binding upon the EPA and upon Respondent, its officers, 

directors, agents, successors, and assigns. The signatories to this Consent Order certify that they are 

authorized to execute and legally bind the party they represent to this Consent Order. No change in the 

ownership or corporate status of Respondent or of the Site shall alter Respondent's responsibilities under 

this Consent Order unless the EPA, Respondent, and the transferee agree in writing to allow the 

transferee to assume such responsibilities. Additionally, at least 30 calendar days prior to such transfer, 

Respondent shall notify the EPA at the address specified in paragraph 30 of this Consent Order. 

IV. STATEMENT OF PARTIES 

The following FINDINGS OF FACT AND OF VIOLATION are made solely by the EPA. In 

signing this Consent Order, Respondent neither admits nor denies the FINDINGS OF FACT AND OF 

VIOLATION. As such, and without any admission of liability, Respondent consents to issuance ofthis 

Consent Order and agrees to abide by all of the conditions herein. Respondent waives any and all claims 

for relief and otherwise available rights or remedies to judicial or administrative review which 

Respondent may have with respect to any issue of fact or law set forth in this Consent Order, including, 

but not limited to, any right of judicial review of this section 309(a)(3) Consent Order under the 

Administrative Procedure Act, 5 U.S.C. §§ 701-708. Respondent further agrees not to challenge the 

jurisdiction ofthe EPA or the FINDINGS OF FACT AND OF VIOLATION below in any proceeding to 

enforce this Consent Order or in any action under this Consent Order. 
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V. FINDINGS OFF ACT AND OF VIOLATION 

1. Respondent BIP 40, LLC, is and was at all times relevant to the Consent Order a corporation 

organized under the laws of the State of Wyoming. Respondent maintains its principal office at 

1300 Venture Way, Casper, Wyoming. 

2. In October of2011 , Respondent began work to acquire a 117-acre parcel for the purposes of 

developing an RV park at the Site. 

3. Respondent retained SBL Associates, Inc. (SBL), a civil engineering firm, to prepare a grading and 

improvement plan. In July of2012, grading of the Site commenced. All mass grading was completed 

sometime in September or October of2012. 

4. Respondent states that during the grading process, SBL informed Respondent that an area in the 

northeast portion of the property likely contained jurisdictional wetlands and that this area was the 

only area on the property containing jurisdictional wetlands. Respondent prohibited contractors from 

placing fill in this portion of the property. 

5. On March 13,2013, SBL informed Respondent that the northwest portion of the property, which had 

already been impacted by grading activities, was possibly a wetland. 

6. Respondent engaged a consulting firm, Carlson McCain, Inc. (Carlson McCain), to conduct a site 

investigation and wetland delineation ofthe Site. 

7. As demonstrated by the wetland delineation report produced by Carlson McCain, construction 

activities at the Site impacted approximately 4.5 wetland acres of a former oxbow/meander channel 

of Can1p Creek and fill material approximately 10 to 15 feet in depth was placed on the wetland 

area. Wetland functions have also been eliminated. 
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8. The impacted wetlands at the Site are adjacent to and directly abut Camp Creek, and are 

hydrologically connected to Camp Creek. Camp Creek is a tributary to the Little Muddy River, 

which is a tributary to the Missouri River, a traditional navigable water. 

9. The wetlands adjacent to and abutting Camp Creek, referenced in paragraphs 7 and 8 of this Consent 

Order, are and were at all relevant times "waters of the United States" within the meaning of 

33 C.F.R. § 328.3(a) and therefore "navigable waters" within the meaning of section 502(7) of the 

CW A, 33 U.S.C. § 1362(7). 

10. The discharges of fill material described in paragraph 7 of this Consent Order resulted from the use 

of common earthmoving vehicles and equipment, which were operated by Respondent or persons 

acting on its behalf. 

11. Respondent is a "person" within the meaning of section 502(5) of the CW A, 33 U .S.C. § 1362(5). 

12. The discharged dredged and/or fill material referenced in paragraph 7 of this Consent Order is and 

was at all relevant times "dredged material" and "fill material" within the meaning of33 C.F.R. 

§ 323.2(c) and (e), respectively, and "pollutants" within the meaning of section 502(6) ofthe CWA, 

33 u.s.c. § 1362(6). 

13. The vehicles and equipment referenced in paragraph 10 of this Consent Order are and were at all 

relevant times each a "point source" within the meaning of section 502(14) ofthe CWA, 33 U.S.C. 

§ 1362(14). 

14. The placement of dredged and/or fill material into wetlands adjacent to and abutting Camp Creek 

constitutes the "discharge of pollutants" within the meaning of section 502(12) of the CW A, 

33 u.s.c. § 1362(12). 
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15. Section 301(a) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 13l l (a), prohibits, among other things, the discharge of 

pollutants by any person into waters of the United States except as in compliance with section 404 of 

the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1344. 

16. Section 404 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1344, sets forth a permitting system authorizing the Secretary 

of the Anny, acting through the Chief of Engineers of the Corps, to issue permits for the discharge of 

dredged or fill material into navigable waters, which are defined as waters of the United States. 

17. 33 C.F.R. § 323.3(a) specifies that, unless exempted pursuant to 33 C.F.R. § 323.4, a permit issued 

by the Corps is required for the discharge of dredged or fill material into waters of the United States. 

18. Respondent was not authorized by a permit issued pursuant to section 404 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. 

§ 1344, to conduct any of the activities described in paragraphs 3 and 7 of this Consent Order. 

19. The activities conducted by Respondent and its agents as described in paragraphs 3 and 7 of this 

Consent Order violate section 301 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1311. 

20. Activities to be carried out under this Consent Order are remedial, not punitive, and are necessary to 

achieve the CWA's objective "to restore and maintain the chemical, physical, and biological 

integrity ofthe Nation's waters," as specified in section l Ol (a) ofthe CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 125l(a). 

Restoration is appropriate and required to address the actual and potential harm to water quality, 

aquatic habitat, and wildlife habitat, as well as other functions and values, caused by Respondent's 

unpermitted activities. 

21. These preceding FINDINGS OF FACT AND OF VIOLATION and the ORDER FOR 

COMPLIANCE below have been made after consultation and coordination with the Corps' Omaha 

District. 
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VI. ORDER FOR COMPLIANCE 

Based upon the foregoing FINDINGS OF FACT AND OF VIOLATION and pursuant to the 

authority vested in the Administrator of the EPA under CWA sections 308 and 309(a), 33 U.S.C. §§ 1318 

and 1319(a), as properly delegated to the Assistant Regional Administrator of the Office of Enforcement, 

Compliance and Environmental Justice, it is hereby ORDERED and AGREED: 

22. Respondent shall immediately terminate all discharges of dredged and fill material at the Site, now 

and in the future, into waters of the United States unless specifically authorized by the Corps under a 

valid permit issued pursuant to section 404 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1344. This prohibition includes 

all mechanical land clearing, dredging, filling, grading, leveling, installation of utilities, construction, 

and any other activities that result in the discharge of dredged or fill material into waters of the 

United States. 

23. Respondent shall conduct removal and restoration activities for impacts to waters of the United 

States resulting from the unauthorized discharges of dredged and/or fill material at the Site in 

accordance with the schedule and other requirements set forth in the Wetland Restoration Plan (Plan) 

appended herein as Attachment A. 

24. This Consent Order is not a permit or an authorization to discharge dredged or fill material, storm 

water, or any other pollutant into waters of the United States. Respondent shall consult with the 

Corps and the North Dakota Department of Health (NDDH) at the addresses and telephone numbers 

below to determine if any work to be performed pursuant to this Consent Order requires a permit 

from the Corps under section 404 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1344, or from NDDH under section 402 

of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1342. If any such permit is required, Respondent shall obtain such 
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permit(s) and provide a copy or copies to the EPA pursuant to paragraphs 25 and 30 of this Consent 

Order prior to initiating any work that is to be performed pursuant to this Consent Order. 

U.S. Army Corps of Engineers 
North Dakota Regional Office 
1513 S. 12'h Street 
Bismarck, ND 58504 
Telephone: 701-255-0015 

North Dakota Department of Health 
Division of Water Quality 
918 East Divide Avenue, 41

h Floor 
Bismarck, ND 58501-1947 
Telephone: 701-328-5210 

25. Respondent must make a timely application for each permit necessary to implement the Plan and for 

conducting removal and restoration activities in accordance with the Plan, including the schedule 

specified therein, with all granted permits, and with all applicable laws. If any permits are necessary, 

Respondent shall demonstrate that all permits have been granted by providing copies of all such 

permits, and any amendments thereto, to the EPA within seven calendar days of issuance of each 

permit. 

26. In addition to the notification requirements set forth in paragraph 24 of this Consent Order, after 

issuance of any Corps authorization for removal and restoration work, Respondent shall submit all 

notifications and correspondence to the Corps in accordance with the terms and conditions in the 

Corps permit. 
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27. All removal and restoration activities conducted pursuant to the Plan and involving the use of heavy 

construction equipment shall be undertaken by an equipment operator experienced in wetland 

restoration. A statement of the equipment operator's qualifications, including professional resume 

and business references, shall be submitted to the EPA within 14 calendar days of the effective date 

of this Consent Order and prior to commencement of removal and restoration activities. 

28. Respondent shall implement the Plan and then commence all removal and restoration activities in 

accordance with the Plan, including the time frames specified therein, and all granted permits. 

29. Carlson McCain or GeoMap, LLC shall supervise all work performed pursuant to the Plan and shall 

be present at the Site during all critical times unless otherwise approved in advance by the EPA. 

30. Respondent shall submit two copies of the Plan, all permits, notifications, and related 

correspondence to: 

Monica Heimdal, 8ENF-W 
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 8 
1595 Wynkoop St. 
Denver, CO 80202-1129 
Telephone: 303-312-6359 

A copy of the Plan also shall be provided to the Corps at the address noted in paragraph 24 of this 

Consent Order. 

31. All plans, deliverables, reports, specifications, schedules, and attachments required by this Consent 

Order are, upon approval by the EPA, incorporated into this Consent Order. Any noncompliance 

with such EPA-approved plans, deliverables, reports, specifications, schedules, and attachments 

shall be deemed a failure to comply with this Consent Order and subject to EPA enforcement. 

32. A lease, sublease, or transfer of the Site shall not relieve Respondent, its officers, directors, agents, 

successors, and assigns of any responsibility in the Consent Order unless the EPA, Respondent, and 

8 



the lessee, sublessee, or transferee agree in writing to allow the lessee, sublessee, or transferee to 

assume such responsibility. Additionally, at least 30 calendar days prior to such lease, sublease, or 

transfer, Respondent shall notify the EPA regarding the details ofthe lease, sublease, or transfer at 

the address specified in paragraph 30 of this Consent Order. 

33. Respondent shall allow, or use its best efforts to allow, access by any authorized representative of the 

EPA or its contractors, the Corps, the NDDH, the North Dakota Game and Fish Department, the 

Natural Resources Conservation Service, and the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, upon proper 

presentation of credentials, to the Site and to a ll records relevant to this Consent Order for any of the 

following purposes: 

a. To inspect and monitor progress of the activities required by this Consent Order; 

b. To inspect and monitor compliance with this Consent Order; and 

c. To verify and evaluate data and other information submitted to the EPA. 

34. This Consent Order shall in no way limit or otherwise affect the EPA's authority, or the authority of 

any other governmental agency, to enter the Site, conduct inspections, have access to records, issue 

notices and orders for enforcement, compliance, or abatement purposes, or monitor compliance 

pursuant to any statute, regulation, permit, or court order. 

35. This Consent Order shall be effective upon the date Respondent receives a fully executed copy of 

this Consent Order. 

36. Issuance of this Consent Order shall not be deemed an election by the United States to forego any 

civil or criminal action to seck penalties, fines, or other appropriate relief under the CWA for 

violations giving rise to this Consent Order. 
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37. The EPA agrees to submit all notifications and correspondence related to the Consent Order to: 

Mr. Christopher H. Hughes 
Member 
BIP 40, LLC 
1569 Highway 15 South Bypass 
Louisville, MS 39339 

Mr. Kyle Brock 
GEOMAP, LLC 
6602 E. Lone Mountain Road N. 
Cave Creek, AZ 85331 

Mr. John A. Brunini 
Counsel for Respondent 
Brunini, Grantham, Grower & Hewes, PLLC 
The Pinnacle Building, Suite 100 
190 East Capitol Street 
Jackson, MS 3920 I 

38. Any party hereto may, by notice, change the address to which future notices shall be sent or the 

identities of the persons designated to receive notices hereunder. 

39. If an event causes or may cause delay in the achievement of the requirements of this Consent Order, 

Respondent shall notify the EPA by telephone or via e-mail as soon as possible and in writing within 

ten working days from the date Respondent first knew of such event or should have known of such 

event by exercise of due diligence, whichever is earlier. Respondent's written notice shall specify the 

length of the anticipated delay, the cause(s) of the delay, the measures taken or to be taken by 

Respondent to minimize the delay and a timetable by which those measures will be or have been 

implemented. Notification to the EPA pursuant to this paragraph of any anticipated delay, by itself, 

shall not excuse the delay or the obligation of Respondent to comply with requirements and 

deadlines of this Consent Order, unless the EPA grants in writing an extension of the applicable 

requirement or deadline. 
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40. If Respondent demonstrates to the EPA's satisfaction that the delay or anticipated delay has been or 

will be entirely caused by circumstances beyond Respondent's control (or the control of any of 

Respondent's agents) that Respondent could not have foreseen and prevented despite due diligence, 

and that Respondent has taken all reasonable measures to prevent or minimize such delay, the EPA 

may excuse performance or extend the time for performance of such requirement for a period not to 

exceed the actual delay resulting from such circumstances. The EPA's determination on these 

matters shall be made as soon as possible and in writing within ten working days after the receipt of 

Respondent's written notification of the event. The parties agree that changed economic 

circumstances shall not be considered circumstances beyond the control of Respondent. 

41. Respondent understands and acknowledges the following: 

a. Section 309(d) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1319(d), as adjusted for inflation by 40 C.F.R. part 19, 

authorizes civil penalties of up to $37,500 per day for each violation of an order issued by the 

EPA under section 309 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1319. 

b. Compliance with the terms and conditions of this Consent Order shall not be construed to relieve 

Respondent of its obligations to comply with any applicable Federal, state, or local law or 

regulation. 

c. Failure by Respondent to complete the tasks described herein in the manner and time frame 

specified pursuant to this Consent Order may subject Respondent to a civil action under 

section 309 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1319, for violation of this Consent Order. 

II 
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Managing Member 
BIP40, LLC 

12 



ATTACHMENT A 

13 



WETLAND RESTORATION PLAN 
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Williston Vi!Ulge RV Resort 
Wetland Restoration Plan 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Construction of the Williston Village RV Resort (RV Resort) has impacted a wedand that appe~m; w 
be connected to Camp Creek. A wetland delineation conducted by Carlson McCain, lnc. determined 
that 4.5 wetland acres were impacted by construction acti"ities (Carlson McC'..ain, 2013). Remo,-al of 
the fill materials will restore the wetland to pre-impact conditions. 

The RV Reson will remove fill materials co the original surface cle\'ation of the impacted wetland area 
and restore it to pre-impact condition~ which will restore its hydrologic regime. Con\'entional 
C.'<cm~,,tion equipment (dozers, scrapers, t~nd backhoes) will be used to remo,·e the fill materials. Precise 
construction staking, implementing Storm Water Pollution Prc\'cnrion Plan (SWPPP) measures, and 
consistent suf\·eys will ensure the fill materials will be rcmo,·ed to the original wetland surface and 
limit impacts ro d1e wetland area. Hydrophytic \'cgetation will be seeded in and wcdand hay from 
adj;u;ent wetlands will he spread on the original wetland surface ro aid in the esr.tblishment o f 
hydrophyric vegetation. 

The impacted wetland is located in the NEV4 of Section 24, TlSSN, RlOlW. The amount of wetland 
impacts and rcstor.ttion details are summarized in Table l. 

Table I. Summa!') of Wetland lm~act and Restoration~ite 

Impacted Wedand Location Williams County I Section 24, TISSN, RlOlW 

Project Wetlands PEMNPEMC (Cow-miin 1979) 

Wetland lmpa.:r 4.S Acn.~ 

Restoration Site Williams County I Section 24, Tl55N, RlOlW 

T yp.e of Rt_.,_mr.trion Remove lllln~<~tcn.tl:. from tmp;tcrec.i wer1.md ·•rca ro or~mal ~urtacc clcvarioru; 

Fill Types (Amounr) Topsoil (30,000 cubic y.mls) and clean till (118,000 cubic yards) 

Restomtion Wcr1:md 4.5 .teres with :;easonal hydrologic rcgum: 

Y cars of Monirorin,g 5 years 

TI1e restored wcrland will be monitored for up to S years but may be terminated prior if the U.S. 
Em·ironmenml Protection Agency (EPA) Jccm.s the restoration successful. A monitoring plan is 
also included in this Restoration Plan. 
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Williston Villag~ RV Resort 
Wetland Restoration Plan 

Williston Village RV Resort Wetland Restoration Plan 
Section 24, T155N, RlOlW 

Williams County, North Dakota 
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Willi.ston Village! RV Raort 
Wetland Ratoration Plan 

1.0 INTRODUCTION 

Construction of the Williston Village RV Resort (RV Resort) impacted 4.5 wcdand acres by filling a 
former oxbow/meander channel of Camp Creek (Appendix A). Cnmp Creek flows ensr through the 
northern portion of the RV Resort property toward the Little Muddy Rn:er. rill was placed into the 
fonner oxbow/meander channel during construction activities. A wetland delineation that evaluated 
historic aerial photos and current field conditions determined the area of impact. This restoration 
plan identifies the project impacts to the wedand and describes the removal of those impacts. 

TI1e wetland is located o n the north edge of the RV Resort propcrry ncar Williston, North Dakota, in 
the NEV4 of Section 24, TISSN, RlOlW (Appendix A). 

T bt 2 lm ed W land Ar a e tpact et ea 

Wedand NWl Acres* Wetland Impact Acres 

w~ttmd 1 PEMNPEMC 4.5 4.5 

Total 4.5 

*fu:reagt: ~rimared from wetland delineation (:Ontained m Wetland Deline-arion 
R.t:porr (Cirlson M<.Ctin, 2013). 

The RV Resort will conduct and oversee the restoration of the impacted wcrland. 
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Williston Village RV R!:.Sort 
WetL:md Rl!ltoration Plan 

2.0 EXISTING SITE CONDITIONS 

The impacted wetland L-; located on the RV Resort property and is classified as Palumine Emergent 
Temporarily Hooded (PEMA) and Palustrine Emergent Seasonally Hooded (PEMC). The wetland area 
w.ts a fonner oxbow/meander channel of Camp C reek and is locarcd in rhe Little Muddy River 
watcn.hed. 1l1e impacted wetland area has been determined at 4.5 acres. 

2. 1 Impacted Wetland Physical Conditions 

TI,e impacted wetland had a se~tsonal hydrologic regime. Its hydrology was influenced by surface water 
flow and by groundwater (approximate 9 inches in depth as varies seasonally from 0-18 inches in 
depth) flow through the sire. The impacted wetland contains Harriet soils and \\<tS , ·cgerared with 
saline tolerdnt species. Alkali grass (Puccindlia nuualiana), saltgrass (Distichlis spictlta), and foxt'.til harley 

(Hord.!um jubarum) arc prC\alent along the edge of rhc impacted wetland area. The uplands 
surrounding the impacred wedand area consist of Williams-Z:thl loams which contain an average 
depth of groundwater to be greater than 80 inches. 1l1c depth of groundwater in the area has been 
estimated to he near an ele,·ation of 1880 feet above sea le\'cl and this is consistent with the surface of 
the impacted wetland area. 

Approximately 148,000 cubic yards of fill materials were inad\'ertendy placed in the wetland area. 
Approximately 30,000 cubk yards of upland , ·egerared topsoil was placed on rhe original werlaml 
surface and 118,000 cubic yards of clean fill was placed on the topsoil fill material~. The clean fill 
materials were identified as sandy lean day glacial rill and/or sandy coarse alluvium. 

1l1e \'egerated topsoil fill materials consist of Williams--Zahl loams, (surficial clayey :;and) which were 
placed on me original wetland surface. C lc-.tn fill materials were placed on top of the ,·egctated topsoil 
fill material. 
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Will.iston Village RV Resort 
Wetland Restoration Plan 

Photograph l. View of the fill materials located within the downstream 
portion of the impacted wetland area. 

Photograph 2. View of upstream edge of the impacted wetland area. Surface 
water accumulated in the upstream portion due to the fill materials. 
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Williston Villagt RV Re5art 
Wetland Re5taration Plan 

3.0 PROPOSED SITE CONDITIONS 

3.1 Restoration Activities 

Restorc~tion activities will include removal of ftll materials to the origiMl elevations of the impacted 
wetland surface. The original surface elevations range from 1882.98 (upstream etlge) ro 1876.95 
(downstream edge). Prior to impact, water flowed east through the wetland towards Camp Creek. 

Approximately 148,000 cubic yards of material will he removed ro rcsrorc the impacrctl wetland ro irs 
o riginal gwund surface. C'..onventional excavation equipment (dozers, scrapers, backhoes) will be used 
to remove flU materials. The use of conventional cxca\'ation equipment will ensure the resromtion is 
completed quickly which will allow the rescored site to quickly resume wetland functions. TI1e 
excavation equipment will access the impacted wetland area from the south across upland areas. 
Excavated fill materials will be placed on d1e surrounding upland areas to the south and cast of the 
impacted wedamlllrea (Appendix A). 

The boundaries of d1e fill area will be staked by surveyors to limit impacts ro adjacent wetland areas. 
Gr.tde elevations of the depth of fill to be removed will he staked on a I 00 foot grid across the area of 
fiLL. Surveys and staking of grade ele\1Hion o f the depd1 of fill will be comluctetl routinely to msure 
that aU fill m;:Jterials arc removed and over-cxc:wation of the impacted wetland area does not occur. 

Best management practices will be implemented by the contractor while remO\ing fill material<; from 
rhe impacted wetland arc;t. Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPP) measures will he 
implemented to limit impacts to adjacent wetlands (Appendix B). Additional measures will include the 
usc of construction mars or low ground pressure cquipmenr if the site becomes saturated or as the 
exca,"ation approaches final grade ro reduce compaction of the impacted wetland area. Silt fences 
placed along the upstream and downstream wetland edge will be rcmo\'ed following the excavation of 
the fill materials. Addirionlll silt fences will be placed at the base of the graded slopes following the 
removal of rhc fill materials to keep sediment from the graded slopes from eroding into the wcrlaml. 
These silt fences will be left in place for a minimum of three years or until the gradc..xl slopes arc smhle 
and vegetated. 

The equipment u~ed, CXCH\1ttion acti\'iries and grade elevation staking will be inspected daily hy Mr. 
Kyle Brock and/or Mr. John Reeves (onsite super\"lsors). 

Grading of rhe adjacent slopes v.ill also be conducted during the remo\'al of the fill marerials. At lc-.tst 
four inches of topsoil will be spread on the graded ~lopes to aid the growth of nari,·e \'egetarion 
species. 

3.2 Restoration of Wetland functions 

Restoration of the impacted wetland's hydrologic regime will be accomplished by removing fill 
materials to the original surface elevations. Removal of d1c fill materials will allow surface run-off, high 
water from Camp Creek, and gToundwarcr to inundate and saturate rhc wetland area. 
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WiLListon ViLlage RV Resort 
Wc:tland Restoration Plan 

Vegetation within the wetland area will be re-esLablished by two med10ds: l) seeding Nuttall alkaligrass 
and 2) spreading wetland hay across the wetland surface. Nuttall alkaligrass seeds wUI be broadcast 
across the surface of the wetland and then co,·ered with wetland hay. 1l1e wetland hay will consist of 
Nuttall's alkaligrass, saltgrass, and foxtail barley. The wetland hay will prO\·ide an additional seed 
source ro the wetland area and help to control erosion . The wetland hay will he collected from 
adjacent wetland areas along Camp Creek. Rcstor.ltion of hydrology will also aid in re-establishing 
hydrophyric ,·egernrion by allowing p ropagules to naturally flow into the wetland from h1gh flows of 
C1mp Creek. Table l indicates the proposed seeding mixrure. 

Table 1. Seeding mixture for restored wetland. 

Species• Mixture (~,) Pure Uve Seed (Lbs/ Ac) Acres 
Total 

Pure U"e Seed (Lbs) 

N u rrall ,, lk.lli2t'.tss 100% 1 s 4.5 6.8 

*Seed ina ~hcdule\1 tor full of 2013 followin~ remw.tl of tlli mareriak 

Native vegetation species will be seeded imo the graded slopes adjacent to the wetland. Str-Jw wattles 
will be installed on ;md str-Jw d1aff will be spread upo n the seeded slopes to dccrctlsc erosion and aid 
in the establishment of \'egetarion on them. The vegetation will control erosion, reduce sedimentation, 
and pro,·idc wildlife habimt. The table below indicHcs the seeding mixture w be planrcd upon the 
site. The seed used to re-establish \'egerarion on the restoration site will he ohtnined from lot:<\l plant 
sources. 

Table 2. Seeding miuure for slopes adjacent to the restored wetland. 

Species•• Mixture (''<>) Pure Uve Seed (Lbs/ Ac) Acres 
Total 

Pure Uve Seed (Lbs) 

Little Blul~tcm 25% !.50 2.0 10 

We$tcm Wlu.'.\tgrass 25% 3.00 2.0 6.0 

Needle .md Thread 20% 2.8S 2.0 5.7 

Switchl!r,\NI IS% 0.79 2.0 1.6 

Dotted Ga\1Cathcr S% 0.60 2.0 I:! 

Still Sun !lower 5% 0.19 2.0 0.4 

Purple prmri~·dovcr >% 0.17 20 0.'3 

Purple Conetlower 2% 0.27 2.0 0.5 
••&etling ~hould be o.:untlucrcd between May 1 and June 1 S, 2014. 

3.3 Noxious Weed Species Management 

Mechanical controls will be used to man.1ge noxious weed species if they become prevalent within the 
te.-itored wetland and adjacent slopes. The restoration site will he monitored annually by the RV 
Resort and appropriate steps will be taken m control noxious weeds. Noxious weeJs idcmified by the 
North Dakota state list will he managed. Williams County dOt..>s not list any additional noxious weeds. 
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WiLli..swn ViLlage! RV Rc!3ort 
Wc!dand Rc!Storation Plan 

Planrs identified as noxious weeds include: 

• Absinth wormwood 

• C'.-anada thistle 
• Diffuse knapwccd 
• Leafy spurge 

• Musk thistle 
• Purple loosestrife 

• Russian knapweed 
• Spotted knapweed 
• Yellow toadflax 
• Dalmation toadflax 
• Salt cedar 
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Williston Village RV R~ort 
Wetland R~toration Plan 

4.0 MONITORING PIAN 

The restored wetl.·md requires subsequent monitoring of its hydrology and vegetation to ensure it is 
functioning correcrly. The restored wetl:md wUl be evaluated with wcdand criteria as identified in rhe 
Grwt Plains Regional Supplement w tk 1987 Manual (Version 2.0) (USACE 2010) and National Wetland 
Plant List (Lich\'ar 20 12). 

Monitoring of the restoration :.ire will be conducted for five years but may be tenninared prior if rhe 
U.S. Environment.tl Protection Agem:y (EPA) deems the restoration successful. 

4.1 Monitoring Methods 

Monitoring of the restored wetland will consist of a field visit, a monitoring reporr, and follow-up to 
any questions or suggestions from regulamry personnel. Monitoring will be performed midv."..IY and 
ncar the end of the first ami second gwwing seasons following removal of the fill materials. 
Subsequent monitoring will be conducted on an annual h:~sis during the month of August. The 
restored wetland will be <.•valuated by the presence of indicators of wetland criteria, i.e., hydrology, and 
hydrophytic ,·egetation (hydric soils are already present) at representarive observation points located 
along a sampling rrans<.'t.t. 1l1e spatial location of the obsemltion points and rhe photo points will be 
colk-cred during the inirial monitoring effort with a OPS ro ensure that the same locations are 
e\'aluarw during subsequent monitoring visits. 

4.l.l Photo Points 
Photo points arc a specified location in which field phorogrHphs will be mken. Phorographs taken 
from a wecified locanon and consistent direction will pro' ide a ,·isuaJ account of the rcsroration nnd 
development of the r<.~rored wetland. 

Photo points will be csmblished in srrategic locations in order t'<> document the changes occurring 
within the restored wetland. The proposed locations and d irections of the photo points c.1n be seen in 
(Appendix A). 1l1c photo points will be marked with a metal stake and the spatial locations will be 
coLleLted with a GPS. Photogrc~phs taken from these locations will ha\'e consi~tcnt camera settings and 
a documented ,;ewing direction. Pharo tdcntification cards \\ith pertinent information to the photo 
point will be placed in the photograph's field of view. Information documented on the photo 
identification card will include: 

• Unique phoro poinr identification 
• Photographer's initials 
• Date and rime 
• Magnetic declination 
• Location 
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Williston Village RV RI!Sort 
Wetland Restoration Plan 

4.1.2 Wedand Vegetation 
Wetland vegetation composition will be evaluated at each obser\'ation point following the guidelines 
set forth by the Regional Suppkmrnt to the Corps of Engineers Wetland Delin~tion Manual: Great Plains 
Region (Version 2.0) (USACE 20 10). Areal cover of all vegetation species and percent bare soil will he 
e,·aluatccl within a 1 meter squared quadrat at each observation point. An o\·cr.tll vegetation species 
list of the restored wetland will be compiled with species noted at the obser\'ation points and those 
obserYecl while traversing bct\\:cen them. The restored wetland will be surveyed for the presence of 
noxious weeds. The adjacent seeded slopes will be evaluated for the presence of noxious weeds and 
m·erall presence/growth of the ~eeded species. 

4.1.3 Wetland Hydrology 
Wetland hydrology indicators will be e\"aluatcd at e-ach obser\'ation point following the guidelines set 
forth by the Regional Suppkmrnt to ~ Corps of Engineers Wetland Del.inc:ation MantwL: Grt!at Plains Regron 
(Versron 2.0) (USACE 20 10). Hydrology indicators \\ill al~o he identified while rraversing between 
obsemttion points. 

4.2 Problem Areas 

Problem areas will be identified and document<..'ll during the momtoring visits. Photographs and notes 
detailing each problem area will he collected during the field monitoring. Problems areas may invoke 
erosion, areas barren of vegerntion, patches of noxious weeds, etc. 

4.3 Monitoring Report 

Monitonng reports will be completed after each monitoring \tSit and submined. E.tch report will 
describe the emironmental conditions at the sire and assess the relative success or f.tilure of 

restoration efforts. The report will indudc: 

• Name and contact information of permittee, IX>int of con mer, and field observer(:;) 
• Name of person conducting monitoring reports and dates of monitoring visits 
• Directions m and map of mitigation are.t 
• Summary par.tgraph describing the project's purpose, em·ironmcnrnl conditions at the site, and 

restoration action 
• Timeline of restoration acthities and final date of completion 
• Photographs and a narnuive summary of the restored wetland'~ relative success or failure per 

success criteria 
• Photographs and de:.criptions of any problem arc:-ts 
• Recommendations for correcri,·e or remedial actions (if necessary) 
• Description and dates of implemented corrective actions (if applicable) 
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Williston ViUag~ RV Resort 
Wt!tland Restoration Plan 

5.0 RESTORATION SUCCESS CRITERIA 

Success criteria variables are essential ro C\-aluating the restored wedand. The success of the restored 
wetland will be hascd on the re-establishment of hydrology and hydrophytic vegeration and the 
management of noxious weeds. 

5.1 Wetland Hydrology 

Wedand hydrology will be restored foUowing rhe remoml of the fiU materials. Imlications of hydrology 
observed during the monitoring ,·isits will indicate success for the restored wetland. Indications of 
hydrology will also be compared ro adjacent wetlands. 

5.2 Hydrophytic Vegetation 

Hydrophytic vegemtion will he deemed successful when these species comprise gre:ncr than SO percent 
of areal cover.tge and he considered dominant species within the obscr\'ation points. The percent of 
bare soil will also decrease as vegetation is re-c.~tahlbhcd. Percent bare soil shoulJ be considereJ 
successful when it comprises less than IS percent of areal cover. 

5.3 Noxious Weed Coverage 

Noxious w<..-cds in and around the restored wetland will be e'-aluared and overall coverage will be 
derennined. Management of noxious weeds will be implemenu.-d by request if restomrion succes.-; 
criteria goals are not met. Noxious weed coverage should be considered successful when it comprises 
less than 10 pen:cnr of areal co,·erage. 
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Williston Village RV Resort 
Wetland Restoration Plan 

6.0 RESTORATION CONTINGENCY MEASURES 

The RV Resort anticip;nes that the success criteria variables will be met with the proposed restoration 
of the wetland. However, contingency measures may be necessary t,o correct unforeseen problems and 
provide remedial actions for rhe restored wetland. The RV Rcsorr will be responsible to provide 
remedial actions. 

Contingencies are based on the success criteria variables of the monitoring plan and pro,·ide methods 
to correct potential problems. Potential siru:uions and contingencies arc described below. Not all 
furure problems can be foreseen; therefore, additional contingencies may need ro be developed and 
implemented to remediate the siruation. Prior to any contingency measure being implemented, an 
evaluation of the siruation and consultation and coordination with the EPA will take place co 
determine dle appropriate course of action. 

6.1 Vegetation Contingency Measures 

Contingency measures for wetland vegetation may involve the following actions: 

• Physical control (i.e., mowing, haying, o r grazing after the nesting season) 

• Reseeding 
• Additional seeding 

Physical control merhods will be implemented if the vegemtion success criteria ,·ariables are not met 
during clle monitoring period. 

6.2 Wedand Hydrology Contingency Measure 

Contingency measures for wetland h)'-drology may involve the following actions: 

• Additional removal of fill materials 

• RemO\-al of sedimentation or erosion materials 

This action will be implemented if the wetland hydrology success criteria \'ariable is not met dunng the 
monitoring period. Hydrologic conditions will be compared with nearby wetlands of similar size and 
dass. 
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Williston ViUagt! RV R~ort 
Wetland Restoration Plan 

7.0 INSPECTIONS 

The resrorarion site and activities will be available for inspections by EPA personnel. 
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Willuton Village RV Resort 
Wetland RI!Storation Plan 

8.0 SCHEDULE 

The removal of fill materials and restoration of the impacted wedand is of high priority so restoration 
activities will commence immediately upon acceptance of d1e resto ration plan and recei,·ing the notice 
to proceed. lt will take approximately 45 days to finish the restoration activities so it is essential to start 
soon in order to beat the onset of winter weather. The anticipated completion of the restoration is 
prior to November 15, 2013. Monitoring reports are anticipated to be submitted for review wirhin 45 
days of the monitoring effort. 

Anticipated schedule: 

• Construction staking I lmplementation of erosion conrrol srrucrures - September 30, 2013 or 
sooner if notice to procex!d is received earlier 

• Commence removal of fill materials - September 30, 201) or sooner if notice to proceed is 
received earlier 

• Completion of final grading and remo\-al of fill materials - prior to Nm·embcr 1 S, 2013 
• Completion and submittal of" As-built plans" - prior to No,·embcr 15, 2013 
• Seeding of restored wetland - prior to November 15, 2013 
• Seeding of graded slopes adjacent to restored wetland -Spring 2014 (berween May 1 and June 

IS) 
• Biannual Monitoring -June and August 2014 and 2015 (subsequent reports :;ubmitted within 

45 days of monitoring efforr) 
• Annual Monitoring - August 2016 - 2018 (if necessary), (subsequent report submitted within 

45 days of monitoring effort) 

RV Resort resen·cs the right to modify the anticipated schedule if unforeseen problems or inclement 
weamer occurs. 
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Williston Villag~ RV Rdort 
Wetland Restoration Plan 
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